WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the Meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee held in the Council Chamber - The Guildhall on 8 March 2023 commencing at 6.30 pm.

Present: Councillor Mrs Anne Welburn (Chairman)

Councillor Jeff Summers (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Owen Bierley
Councillor Matthew Boles
Councillor Michael Devine
Councillor Ian Fleetwood
Councillor John McNeill
Councillor Mrs Mandy Snee
Councillor Trevor Young

Councillor Mrs Tracey Coulson

In Attendance:

Ian Knowles Chief Executive

Emma Foy Director of Corporate Services and Section 151

Nova Roberts Director of Change Management, ICT & Regulatory

Services

Cliff Dean ICT Team Manager

Ellen King Policy & Strategy Officer – Corporate Strategy & Business

Planning

Ele Snow Senior Democratic and Civic Officer

Apologies: Councillor Stephen Bunney

Councillor Liz Clews Councillor Robert Waller

Membership: Councillor Mrs Tracey Coulson sat as substitute for

Councillor R. Waller

79 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT

Prior to the commencement of the formal business of the meeting, the Chairman explained she had an announcement to make regarding an urgent item of business to be heard by Committee. She stated that arrangements for handling urgent business at committee or subcommittee meetings were governed by statute, which required the chairman's approval before an urgent item could be considered, and for the reason for the urgency to be recorded in the minutes. She explained that the item was for Amendments to the approved Committee Timetable: Change of Meeting Date – Corporate Policy & Resources Committee, June 2023, and it would be heard with the public reports on the agenda.

The Chairman further announced that the Council was required under the Local Government Act 1972 to produce a schedule of its meetings. Whilst the Head of Paid Service had a

number of delegations in relation to the Committee timetable, as set out in Part 4 of the Constitution, this delegation did not extend to changing already approved dates, in order that the delegation did not compete with the legal requirement to produce a schedule of meetings.

Furthermore, the Chairman noted this was the last meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee, where the schedule of meetings would be approved, and so for that reason, she was in agreement with the request for this to be considered as an urgent item at the meeting.

80 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PERIOD

There was no public participation.

81 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING/S

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee held on 9 February, 2023 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

82 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting.

83 MATTERS ARISING SCHEDULE

With no comments or questions from Members, the Matters Arising Schedule was **DULY NOTED.**

84 IT POLICY UPDATE

Members gave consideration to a report from the ICT Manager, seeking approval of the suite of Information Technology Policies, which had been refreshed to ensure they were compliant with the new National Cyber Strategy 2022. It was explained that a total of twelve policies had been refreshed, with the report detailing the amendments to each policy. The Committee also heard that the ICT Manager was in contact with the associated team at Lincolnshire County Council, in order to seek a solution for 'multi-hatted' Councillors to be able to use a single device, rather than a device for each Council. He assured Members he would keep them updated but initial conversation had proved positive. After summarising the purpose behind each policy, as well as the security reasons as to why there were some policies that were exempt from being made public, questions and comments from the Committee were invited.

Note: Councillor T. Young arrived at 6.43pm

Members commented that it was perhaps a sign of the times that it was necessary to have

such policies but appreciated their importance in protecting the Council's data and that of residents. Members were particularly pleased to hear that discussions were continuing with Lincolnshire County Council regarding shared software on one device.

It was confirmed that training arrangements were in place for both Members and Officers in relation to the policies. These arrangements were reviewed on a frequent basis. It was also confirmed that policy reviews were undertaken at North Kesteven District Council, bearing in mind the existing shared service arrangements.

Members noted that the timing for the return of devices from Members who were no longer Councillors had been discussed with Democratic Services and was based on best practice.

Having been moved and seconded, and on the Chairman taking the vote, it was unanimously

RESOLVED that

- a) the ICT Policy report and associated updated policies (as given below) be approved:
 - Information Security Policy (Appendix 1)
 - ICT Disaster Recovery Policy (Appendix 2)
 - Incident Response Action Card Phishing (Appendix 3)
 - Incident Response Action Card Denial of Service (Appendix 4)
 - Incident Response Action Card Malware (Appendix 5)
 - Incident Response Action Card Ransomware (Appendix 6)
 - Network Connection Agreement (Appendix 7)
 - Patch Management Policy (Appendix 8)
 - Mutual Non-Disclosure Agreement (Appendix 9)
 - Change Management Procedure (Appendix 10)
 - Remote Working Policy (Appendix 11)
 - Members ICT Policy (Appendix 12)
- b) ICT communicate key changes to staff and Members through Minerva, the Members' Handbook and the learning management system (Learning Pool), providing the opportunity for staff and Councillors to read and understand the policies and have the process confirmed; and
- c) all newly elected Members receive a copy of the Members' ICT Policy contained within the Members' Handbook; and
- d) any future minor housekeeping amendments be delegated to the Director Change Management, ICT & Regulatory Services, in consultation with the Chairs of the Joint Staff Consultative and Corporate Policy and Resources Committees.

85 WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN, 2023-2027

The Committee heard from the Policy and Strategy Officer – Corporate Strategy and Business Planning regarding the Council's Corporate Plan 2023 – 2027. It was explained

that the Corporate Plan which ran to 2023 was due for review and the proposed strategic aims, objectives and outcomes for the upcoming four year period had been incorporated into the updated Plan. The report set out the rationale for the proposals within the Corporate Plan, including the updated policy context, stakeholder engagement and key design principles. The report also included an outline of the monitoring arrangements to assess progress against priorities.

It was explained that the Corporate Plan was the overarching policy document that informed all Council activity, driven by a number of factors including the national, regional and local policy context. In line with the Council's commitment to evidence based decision making, the identified priorities were based on robust statistical evidence as set out in the Council's Annual State of the District Report.

The concept of the Corporate Plan was well embedded across the organisation. A follow-up internal audit of the Corporate Plan and the "Golden Thread", conducted in November 2021, had returned an opinion of substantial assurance, particularly in relation to stakeholder engagement, communication and managing strategic risk.

Members were advised that the document now presented was the culmination of 12 months of development, centred around extensive engagement with Members to produce a Corporate Plan which reflected the priorities of the Council; and with staff, to ensure that those priorities were understood. Delivery was being planned for thorough business planning, financial planning and project management. It was reported that with many aspects of the Plan being well-embedded across the organisation, officers were tasked with refreshing and updating the current Plan ready for the next administrative period. Approaching the refresh in this way had allowed for continuity, both for officers, who had been able to continue their strategic business planning, and for Members, so that the post-election administration was not faced with a strategic policy gap for a significant length of time.

The Council's overarching vision, mission and values had been carried across to the refresh and the themes of "Our Council", "Our People" and "Our Place" remained in place. This framework had been used to shape key changes, most notably, updating the evidence base, updating the policy context and refreshing the strategic aims, objectives and outcomes.

The aims and objectives formed the core of the document and these were at the centre of the recommendation contained within the report. The outcomes were considered to be robust, and were designed to be challenging whilst also ensuring that clear evidence of progress could be provided against each of the identified outcomes.

In terms of monitoring progress, the monitoring framework was clearly set out within the Corporate Plan. This would be developed further as the Corporate Plan was embedded, for example, ensuring Progress and Delivery measures were clearly aligned to the aims and objectives so that Members had a strategic view of the performance of the organisation.

As the architects of the Corporate Plan; the aims, objectives and outcomes had been shaped around Members' priorities. Over the last 12 months, there had been extensive engagement opportunities with all Members to shape the development of the strategic aims and objectives through a series of workshops linked to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, through Member engagement with the Chief Executive, the Senior Management Team and

other officers, and, latterly, through a further series of workshops held at the start of 2023.

Additionally, and importantly, the aims and objectives had been designed to align to key policies, strategies and programmes that had already been adopted by the Council, such as the Economic Recovery Plan, the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan, the Housing Strategy and the Environment, Sustainability and Climate Change Strategy, which ensured strategic alignment across the whole organisation, as well as continuity.

A robust evidence base, extensive stakeholder engagement and clear outcomes that were strategically aligned all created solid foundations for a strong and ambitious Corporate Plan that delivered for "Our People", "Our Place" and "Our Council". Officers believed that the aims and objectives represented a fair and accurate reflection of Members' priorities for the next four years and beyond.

The Committee then heard from the Chief Executive, who thanked Members and officers for their contributions to the development of the Plan and in particular mentioned that having regard to possible administrative changes following the elections, the Plan had been formulated in such a way as to able to be adjusted quickly to meet any new Council aspirations, thus maintaining continuity.

Several Members spoke in support of the Plan which they appreciated had been formulated in what might be termed an uncertain national, international and local environment. It was considered that the Plan offered the right balance between innovation in service delivery and continuity. Members were complimentary of the collaborative approach between officers and Members in the development of the Plan. They were also pleased to note the "green thread" approach in an endeavour to ensure that whatever decisions the Council was called upon to make took full account of the impact of climate change and the need to protect the environment of the District.

An opportunity was taken to mention the provision of swimming facilities at Market Rasen and its linkage to the priority of encouraging a healthy lifestyle. It was hoped that this provision would feed into the Council's future prioritisation processes at the appropriate time.

Having been moved and seconded, the Chairman took the vote and it was unanimously

RESOLVED that the Corporate Plan covering the administrative period 2023-2027 be **RECOMMENDED** to Full Council for approval and adoption.

86 URGENT ITEM OF BUSINESS - AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED COMMITTEE TIMETABLE: CHANGE OF MEETING DATE - CORPORATE POLICY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE, JUNE 2023

The Chairman reminded Members of her statement at the opening of the meeting regarding the urgent item of business to be considered. She invited the Senior Democratic and Civic Officer to present the report. Both the purpose of the report, to seek an amendment to the date of the June meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee, and the reason for it needing to be considered by the Committee at this point, it being the last meeting of the current Civic Year, were reiterated to Members. It was explained that West Lindsey District Council had been shortlisted for the LGC Council of the Year Award, the ceremony for which

was scheduled to take place on 9 June 2023. Unfortunately, this was the date scheduled for a meeting of the Committee. In order to ensure maximum flexibility when making arrangements for attendance at the Award Ceremony, it was proposed that the Committee meeting date be amended to 7 June 2023.

A Member of the Committee highlighted that, of the six councils shortlisted for the award, West Lindsey was the only District Council. It was recognised as a remarkable achievement and that to amend the meeting date by one day was a sensible option in order to consider representation at the ceremony. It was also felt that, to make the date change at this time allowed sufficient notice in order to have minimal impact.

The recommendation within the report was duly moved, seconded, and voted upon, and it was

RESOLVED that, for reasons of flexibility to attend the LGC Awards Ceremony, the following change to the 2023/24 Committee Timetable be approved:

a) the meeting of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee scheduled for Thursday, 8 June 2023, be moved to Wednesday, 7 June 2023.

87 COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

With no comments or questions, the work plan was **DULY NOTED.**

In bringing the meeting to a close, the Chairman extended her thanks, on the record, to all who had been involved with the Committee over the four year period, both Officers for their preparation and presentation of reports, and Members of the Committee for their commitment and input.

The meeting concluded at 7.11 pm.

Chairman